
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS – RFP NO. 023-PP10 
MILLION DOLLAR COMMUNITY LITERACY CHALLENGE – FAMILY EMPOWERMENT 

PROJECT 
 
 
1. Copy of Certificate of Status (Good Standing) from the Florida Department of 
 State issued within the past twelve months.  Where do we  obtain this form?  
 

Visit the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations’ website 
(http://www.sunbiz.org/). Selecting the Certification tab on the left navigation 
bar will take you to the Certification Screen. Electronic certification offers 
immediate access to a Certificate of Status for domestic and foreign profit and 
nonprofit corporations, limited liability companies, and limited partnerships. 
The certificate is generated immediately in PDF format, and can be printed in 
color with the Adobe PDF Reader. 

 
2. We are interested in applying for the following schools: 
 

North Miami Beach Sr. High 
JFK Middle 
Fulford 
Greynolds Park 
Gertrude Edelman / Sabal Palm 
North Miami Sr. High 
North Miami Middle 
Arch Creek Elem. 
Booker T Washington Sr. High 
 
Are these schools allowed under the grant? 
 
Awarded entities will be offered the opportunity to contract with The School 
Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida to provide services to family members of 
students who live in the attendance boundary of any public schools 
implementing the Title I School-wide Program. The 2013-2014 Title I 
Participating Schools may be found at: 
http://title1.dadeschools.net/pdfs13/participating_schools.pdf 
 

3.  I need clarification about the 50 minimum participants.  Does this mean that per each 
of the two monthly activities providers need to have a  minimum of 50 participants 
attending OR is it a minimum of a total of 50 for the year?  If, the response is a 
minimum total of 50, if a vendor meets  the minimum before the end of the contract 
period will the vendor be found  as fulfilling contract obligation?   

  
 A minimum of fifty (50) participants shall be served by each Contracted Entity 

during the contract period. Each organization will  submit to the District the 
names of each group of family members and the family relationship between 



the child and each individual.  A family group shall be comprised of: mother, 
father, sibling (age 21 or  older), grandmother, grandfather, aunt or uncle.  At 
least one member of each family group must attend a minimum of two 1-hour 
sessions each month during the contract period.  

  
4. In order to reach a more diverse audience in different Title 1  target areas,  will it be 
 acceptable to have for example 20, 10, 20 participants at three different locations?  

 A minimum of two 1-hour sessions are required each month and the  minimum 
 acceptable number of participants at each session is 80% (40 participants). 
 Contracted Entities may conduct parent meeting/activities at different locations 
 covering the same topic, which will account for one of the required meetings 
 for that month.    
 
5.   Does the evidence based practices need to be based on official research from a 
 particular institution or can internal evidence from the  potential vendor be  sufficient? 
 
 The evidence based practices does not have to be based on official research 
 from a particular institution, it may be internal evidence  from the potential 
 vendor. However, proposers must provide evidence to support the 
 effectiveness of the program in strengthening families.   
 
6.   As a point of clarification, a minimum of 2 outcomes needs to be  selected and for 
 each two indicators, is this correct? 
 
 As indicated on page 4, of the RFP, the proposal must provide two (2) 
 indicators for each project outcome. 
 
7.   Is the expectation of the minimum of 50 participants to be served  unduplicated?  
 That is, that for each of the monthly activities, the same individuals are expected  to 
 attend a minimum of two workshops? 

At least one member of each family group must attend the sessions. 
Participants do not have to be identical at each session. Each organization will 
submit to the District the names of each group of family members and the 
family relationship between the child and each individual.  A Family group shall 
be comprised of: mother, father, sibling (age 21 or older), grandmother, 
grandfather, aunt or uncle.    

 
  
8.   Will pre/post survey serve as a form to comply with the indicators  required? 
 
 Surveys may serve as one of the quantitative and qualitative data collection 
 methods the program uses to measure the progress towards achieving the 
 program outcome.  



 
 9. In the grant proposal literature we are asked to use a Proposal Cover Sheet, 
 Work  Plan Form, and Proposal Budget Forms. In the past I've used these type of 
 documents but usually they "open up" and I've simply  typed in the information 
 onto a spreadsheet. Unfortunately when I try to open up your documents can't seem 
 to get them to open. Perhaps I'm doing something wrong. Or perhaps we are to use 
 these hard copies but I don't think so. 
 
  
 The required forms are attached in a fill able Word document.  Please see 
 Attachment A   
   
10. Is there a requirement as it relates to whether or not the narrative should be double 
 spaced, have a specific font size, specific margin space, etc.? (no page reference) 
 
 NO. 
  
11.  Are we required to only present the project outcomes that are listed in the 
 RFP,  or can we also create our own? (Page 4 of RFP, middle paragraph) 
 
 Sample General Project Outcomes are provided in the RFP. Proposers may 
 provide additional project outcomes with specific indicators.   
 
12.  As it relates to Administrative and Fiscal Capacity, can we include letters  of support 
 from other funding sources that document relevant experience?  Would be this be 
 counted as a page in the Narrative Section? (Page 17 of  RFP, paragraph G) 
 
 Yes 
 
13. Are tables required to meet margin requirements, if any? (no page reference) 
 
 No  
 
14. Is food an allowable cost for parent workshops/activities? (no page  reference) 
  
 Food and refreshments are not allowable expenditures under this project 
 funding.  However, the required matching funds from other sources may be 
 used to support the project and to cover project  expenditures that are not 
 allowable under Title I regulations.  
 
15. Are parent incentives an allowable cost? (no page reference) 
   
 The required matching funds from other sources may be used to support 
 project expenditures  that  are  not  allowable  under Title I  regulations. 
 Contracted Entities will be provided with the list of unauthorized Title I 
 purchases.  



 
  
16. On page 5, as we are doing school and community engagements, are 4 
 bulleted outcomes.  Are we required to do all 4?  The way the directives  on pg. 4 
 are written, "For each project outcome, the proposal must provide  2 indicators" it 
 seems as though each outcome is to be addressed.  However, on pg. 20, "Filling out 
 the Work Plan Form," bullet 3 states, to "choose 2 program outcomes." In  essence, 
 my question is what is the required amount of outcomes? If the  minimum is  2,  
 are we allowed to do 3 or 4 if we would like? If so, then do we complete that   
 number of Work Plan Forms? 
 
 Proposals must address a minimum of two (2) project outcomes.  For 
 each  project outcome targeted, two (2) indicators must be provided. One (1) 
 Work Plan Form must be completed for each project outcome addressed. 
 Proposals may address all four (4) project  outcomes indicated for each 
 project area.   
 
17. On page 20 the RFP requests 2 program outcomes and 2 indicators of change for 

each outcome.  On page 10 the RFP asks for objectives to be identified and on 
pages 16 and 17 objectives are referenced.  Are the terms outcome and objectives 
synonymous in this RFP?  If not, please define the term objectives.  
 
The terms outcome and objectives are not synonymous in the RFP.  The 
project outcome refers to the overall goal for the parent, guardians, caregivers 
and families that you serve. The objectives refer to the purpose for each 
event/activity.    

 
18. On page 20 the instructions for filling out the Work Plan Form requests 2 outcomes 

but the RFP narrative does not specify the number of outcomes a proposal should 
have in a funding category area?  Can we have more than two outcomes for a 
category?  If so, should we only list two outcomes for inclusion in the Work Plan for a 
funding category area? 

 
 Proposals must address a minimum of two (2) project outcomes; however, 
 proposals may address all four (4) project outcomes indicated for each 
 project area.  One (1) Work Plan Form must be completed for each project 
 outcome addressed. The project outcome  will be part of the program report 
 for Contracted Entities.   
 
19. Page 20 requests citation of data source(s) for measuring the progress of the 

indicators towards each outcome.  Page 8 discusses the creation of a portfolio, which 
will be a primary evaluation tool.  Page 10 specifies a criteria for program evaluation 
that demonstrates, “appropriate use of data to monitor, evaluate, and improve the 
program.”  Please clarify the level of program evaluation that we will be expected to 
perform. 

 



 Page 10, (Evaluation of Proposal) refers to the specific criteria that will be used 
 by the reviewers in the evaluation of the proposal.  On  page 20, (cite the data 
 source) proposers are asked to describe on the Work Plan Form, how they will 
 measure the progress of the indicators towards each of the outcomes 
 targeted.  As indicated on page 8, Contracted Entities will be required to take 
 part in research and/or evaluation projects commissioned by M-DCPS, and to 
 complete steps 1- 7, listed under Research and Evaluation.      
 
20. In the proposal format C. Project Design, Objectives of the Program, 2nd bullet, it 

mentions, "Include the objectives in SMART terms."  I am assuming the "objectives" 
are the indicators.  Can you please confirm this? 
 
The specific indicator is used to determine the progress towards achieving the 
project outcome. The objectives refer to the purpose for each event/activity.    
 

21. Under the General School and Community Engagement Project Outcomes, the 
second bullet reads, "Parents, guardians and caregivers will increase their knowledge 
of and involvement with school and community organizations."  Can this outcome be 
altered? We would like it to read "Parents, guardians and caregivers of children with 
special needs or at-risk children will increase their knowledge of and involvement 
with school and community organizations."  Our intent with this indicator is to provide 
advocacy services for those parents with children in Special Education or who are at-
risk academically.   

 
The outcomes indicated in the RFP are sample general project outcomes. 
Where applicable, projects should address the specific needs of caregivers, 
including grandparents, older siblings, and other extended family members, in 
the development of children and youth. 

 
 

 
22. Please advise if a government entity is allowed to apply for the RFP. 

 

M‐DCPS will fund non‐profit faith‐based organizations and community-based 

organizations with an active registration with the Florida Department of State, 
Division of Corporations, and evidence of 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status.  

 
23. The RFP indicates that a non-profit organization should be a Florida not- for-profit 
 and have an active registration with the Florida Department of state, Divisions of 
 Corporations.  Urban Strategies is headquartered in  St. Louis, Missouri, however, 
 we are actively registered with the Florida Department of State, Division of 
 Corporations and therefore would like to know if we will be allowed to submit an 
 application for the Family  Empowerment RFP? 



 
Organizations considered under this RFP must meet all of the eligibility criteria 
listed on page 7 of the RFP, inclusive of: must be a Florida Not-for-Profit 
Corporation and have an active registration with the Florida Department of 
State, Division of Corporations.   

  
24. Does a nonprofit organization applying for this grant need to provide any of the 

requirements for a local business as defined in the RFP? 
 
 Proposers are required to provide all documentation and meet all 
 requirements outlined in the RFP. 
 

25. What is the funding period?    
  
 The initial contract period shall be for one year from the date of contract 
 award notice. Funded organizations must begin to provide services no 
 later than two weeks after the full execution of the contract. 
 

26. Can we provide a current Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Registration Letter instead of a Certificate of Status from the Florida Department of 
State? 

All proposers must supply a Certificate of Status (Good Standing) from the 
Department of State, Division of Corporations by the established proposal 
submission deadline.  

 
27. Regarding the population to be served for this grant. It states that the parent must 

have a child/ren in a Title I school.  Since the COPE Centers are Title I and the teen 
parents in those schools have children attending and those children have school ID 
numbers, is it  possible to provide services for those teen parents and meet the 
requirements of the grant?  This would mean working with the two  schools. Are the 
schools allowed to participate?   

Proposals are requested for projects serving parents, guardians, caregivers 
and family members of children who live in the attendance boundary of public 

schools implementing the Title I School‐wide Program.  The parents, guardian, 

caregiver and family members of the teen parent may be served under the 
project.  

28. What is the minimum dosage of parental participation in bi-monthly sessions? 



At a minimum, projects must provide two (2) 1-hour activities per month.  

29. What is the minimum parent participation in bi-monthly sessions? 

A minimum of fifty (50) participants, (family members) shall be served under 
this program. The minimum expected participants required in the bi-monthly 
sessions is 80% (40 participants).  



30. Can existing parent activities be used or do we need to create new activities? 

Yes, contracted entities may utilize best practices and family engagement 
strategies that have been proven to be effective in strengthening, empowering 
and developing families and communities.   

31. Can different members of a child’s family attend different sessions as a cohort? Do 
the 50 participants need to be identical at each session? 

At least one member of each family group must attend the sessions. 
Participants do not have to be identical at each session. Each organization will 
submit to the District the names of each group of family members and the 
family relationship between the child and each individual.  A Family group shall 
be comprised of: mother, father, sibling (age 21 or older), grandmother, 
grandfather, aunt or uncle.    

32. Do participants have to be family members of students enrolled in a Title I School? 

Participants must be family members of students who live in the attendance 
boundary of public schools implementing the Title I School-wide Program.  

33. How long should the activity be? (Minimum/Maximum) 

A minimum of one (1) hour is required for each activity. The maximum per 
activity is to be determined. 

34. Is flexible implementation, such as online allowed? 

No, the program may not be implemented online 

35. Can parents be taken to an activity in Broward? 

Yes, parents may be taken to activities in Broward 

36. Can transportation be included in the budget? 

Yes, transportation may be included in the budget. 



37. Will the District provide technical assistance, such as training and/or monitoring? 

Yes, contracted entities will be required to participate in professional 
development trainings, workshops and monitoring conducted by Miami-Dade 
County Public Schools.   

38. When will the “Contractor Event Album be collected? 

The Contractor Event Album shall be created as events are held so that the 
albums will be available for review by M-DCPS at any time during the funding 
period, and shall be collected at the end of the of the contract year. 

39. Is pre/post-test required? 

Pre/post-test are not required; however, contracted entities will be encouraged 
to conduct pre/post assessments and/or parent surveys to gage program 
effectiveness and as documentation of success.    

40. Will Districts training be mandatory? 

Yes, Contracted Entities will be required to participate in professional 
development trainings, workshops and monitoring conducted by Miami-Dade 
County Public Schools.   

41. Will agencies have a contact with the District or individual schools? 

Awarded Entities will be offered the opportunity to contract with The School 
Board of Miami-Dade County, Florida to provide services to family members of 
students who live in the attendance boundary of public schools implementing 
the Title I School-wide Program.   

42. Are municipalities able to apply? 

No, qualified applicants include non-for-profit faith-based and community-
based organizations with an active registration with the Florida Department of 
State, Division of Corporations, and evidence of 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status.   

43. Is reimbursement on a quarterly basis negotiable? 



 No, payments for services under the Family Empowerment Project will be on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. Payments will be dispersed in incremental amounts 
throughout the contract period, and are based on participants’ attendance, as 
well as project and expenditure report completion.    

44. Is the agency responsible for recruitment? 

Yes, Contracted Entities will be responsible for recruiting and retaining eligible 
participants for their program.   

45. When/Where is matching funds documented? 

As part of the proposal, applicants must provide proof of the availability of 
matching funds from other sources to be used to support the project, and to 
cover project expenditures that are not allowable under Title I regulations. The 
amount of required matching funds will be determined by the organization’s 
overall budget.  See page seven (7) of the RFP for the specific scale  

46. When will the calendar of activities need to be provided? 

Contracted entities will be required to submit a calendar of activities in 
accordance with the timeline to be provided by the District. 

47. Are more flexible implementation guidelines for agencies serving special needs 
populations and parents who reside throughout the entire county? For example, is 
there an option for agencies to use technology of offer some session to increase 
access to parents who live further or work during session times?  

No, the Family Empowerment Project is strictly an on-site program and 
therefore may not be implemented online. Additionally, services should be 
provided during flexible hours to accommodate working parents.    

48. Special needs children may be enrolled in M-DCPS through age 22. What is the age 
range of children whose parents are being served?  

 The age ranges of children whose parents are being served are ages 5 – 22. 



49. Please provide more details about what will the external evaluator that M-DCPS is 
using for the entire project going to be doing at the agency level. For example, is M-
DCPS going to be providing pre and post assessments that the agencies can use 
with the participating parents? Or, does M-DCPS expect the agencies to develop 
their own assessment tools (surveys, etc.)? 

 M-DCPS will provide technical assistance, training and monitoring. Contracted 
Entities shall be required to take part in research and/or evaluation projects 
commissioned by M-DCPS, and to complete a series of steps, as described in 
the Research and Evaluation section of the RFP. Additionally, each 
organization shall be responsible for maintaining documentation of success, 
inclusive of, but not limited to the following: General Parenting and/or School 
and Community Engagement Project Outcomes, as outlined in the RFP.    

50. Can in-kind donations come from the private sector? 

 Yes, in-kind donations and services may come from the private sector and 
shall include: Project space at no cost or reduced price, pro-bono professional 
services (i.e. legal, graphic design, HR, content expert, etc.), free tickets to 
events for participants and food donations.  

51. Is there a minimum participation per participant? 

 No, there is no minimum participation per participants. 

52. A child with special needs may attend a Title I school because of the services it 
provides, but may not live within the boundary of that school’s area. Will the parents 
of this child be eligible to participate in the Family Empowerment Project? 

Yes  

53. Does the agency determine the fee for Non-M-DCPS participation or is the fee 
determined by M-DCPS? 

 Each Contracted Agency shall determine the fee for Non-M-DCPS participants.  

54. Do all 50 parents need to reside in Miami-Dade County? Could we enroll parents in 
Monroe County as part of the 50 program participants and charge them a fee? 



Yes, family members shall reside in Miami-Dade County. No, family members 
who do not reside in Miami-Dade cannot be enrolled in the program.   

55. Are make-up sessions allowed? 

Yes, specific guidelines for make-up sessions will be clearly outline in the 
Contract. 

56. What are the evidence that need to be submitted with the invoice? 

Quarterly payments will be based on participant attendance and project 
dosage, approved progress toward work plan goals, and completed project and 
expenditure reports with corresponding source documentation. Contracted 
Entities shall be required to submit participant attendance records, monthly 
expenditure reports, with corresponding source documentation, and a final 
report.  Additional invoicing requirement shall be specifically outlined in the 
Contract.  

57. Is there a list of allowable expenditures? 
 
 Contracted Entities will be provided with the list of unauthorized Title I 
 purchases.  Additionally, pages (21–24) of the RFP, Proposal Budget Narrative 
 Instructions, provides information regarding allowable expenditures.    


